
 
GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
June 27, 2024 

 
Open to the public 

9:00 AM Garfield Township Hall – Upstairs Main Hall 
3848 Veterans Dr, Traverse City, MI 49684 

                                                                                                                                                           
Persons with disabilities which the foregoing opportunities for participation will not address should 
contact Darcey Gratton at (231) 932-3010 or dgratton@gtpavilions.org with questions or concerns.   

AGENDA 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 

2. ROLL CALL  
 

3. FIRST PUBLIC COMMENT 
Any person shall be permitted to address a meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of 
Health and Human Services Board which is required to be open to the public under the provisions 
of the Michigan Open Meetings Act, as amended.  (MCLA 15.261, et.seq.)  Public comment shall 
be carried out in accordance with the following Board Rules and Procedures: 

1. Any person wishing to address the Board shall state his or her name and address. 
2. Persons may address the Board on matters which are relevant to Grand Traverse 

Pavilions issues. 
3. No person shall be allowed to speak more than once on the same matter, excluding time 

needed to answer Board Members questions.  The Chairperson shall control the amount 
of time each person shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed three (3) minutes. 

a) Chairperson may, at his or her discretion, extend the amount of time any person is 
allowed to speak. 

b) Whenever a group wishes to address the Board, the Chairperson may require that 
the group designate a spokesperson; the Chairperson shall control the amount of 
time the spokesperson shall be allowed to speak, which shall not exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes. 

 
The Board shall not comment or respond to a person who is addressing the Board.  Silence or 
non-response from the Board should not be interpreted as disinterest or disagreement by the 
Board. 
 
Please be respectful and refrain from personal or political attacks. 
 

4. COUNTY LIAISON REPORT 
 

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR 
The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with by 

one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board, or staff may ask that any item 

on the consent calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  Such 

requests will be automatically respected. 

 

 

Page 1 of 47



If any item is not removed from the consent calendar, the item on the agenda is approved by a 

single Board action adopting the consent calendar. 

 

A.  Review and File           HANDOUT# 
(1)       Draft Minutes of the 5/30/24 Board Meeting     1 
(2)       Draft Closed Minutes of the 5/30/24 Board Meeting         Handout 
(3)       May Resident Council Minutes      2 

   
7. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
8. CHAIRMAN REPORT         3 

 

9. SERVICE EXCELLANCE AWARDS        4 
 

10. GRAND TRAVERSE MEDICAL CARE  
A.  General Information           

(1)       Foundation Board Update – Haider Kazim     Verbal  
(2)       Outpatient Testimonial       5 
   

B.  Chief Executive Officer Board Report – Gerard Bodalski    6 
 

C.  Business 
(1)    Financials         7 

(2)       Resident Care Policies and Facility Assessment    8 

 

D.  General Discussion 
(1)              

              
G.T.P. Announcements   

(1)     Next Board Meeting – July 25, 2024 
      

11. SECOND PUBLIC COMMENT 
Refer to Rules under First Public Comment above. 
 

12. CLOSED SESSION  
Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with our attorney 
regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, DHHS and the Grand 
Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board v PACE North. 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 47



DRAFT  

 

1 
 

GRAND TRAVERSE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES BOARD 

1000 Pavilions Circle, Traverse City, MI 49684 
 

MINUTES OF THE MAY 30, 2024 MEETING 

 
PRESENT: Mary Marois, Haider Kazim, Carol Crawford       Board  
  Gerard Bodalski, Darcey Gratton        Staff  
  TJ Andrews                 Commission 
 
ABESENT:                  
         
GUESTS:  

 
The regular meeting of the Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services 
Board was called to order at 9:02am by Board Chair Mary Marois at the Governmental Center.    

 
First Public Comment  
Kimberly Eggly 
McKenzie Beeman 
 
County Liaison Report – Andrews shared that after multiple interviews to appoint a new DHHS 
Board member, the County Board of Commissioners (BOC) voted to appoint Carol Crawford.  
Regarding the agreement with PACE North and Grand Traverse County, Andrews shared that 
the BOC rejected the contingency for the county to transfer the building to PACE North and to 
allow the separation between PACE North and the Pavilions.  Andrews spoke of the need for 
housing for homelessness and suggested for the Pavilions to have community discussions to 
provide housing at the Cottages due to the acute need in the area.  
 
Approval of Agenda – Chair Marois requested to add Election of Officers before the approval 
of the Consent Calendar as #6.  Motion was made by Kazim to approve the Agenda with 
additions as presented, seconded by Crawford and carried unanimously.   
 
Election of Officers (added) – Kazim made a motion to nominate Marois as Chair, seconded 
by Crawford and carried unanimously.  Crawford made a motion to nominate Kazim as Vice-
Chair, seconded by Marois and carried unanimously.  
      
The purpose of the Consent Calendar is to expedite business by grouping items to be dealt with 
by one Board motion without discussion.  Any member of the Board or staff may ask that any 
item on the Consent Calendar be removed and placed elsewhere on the agenda for discussion.  
Such requests will be automatically respected.  

 
REVIEW AND FILE 
  

(1)       Draft Minutes of the 4/18/24 Board Meeting 
(2)       April Resident Council Minutes 
(3)       April Let’s talk Food Minutes 

 
Crawford requested to pull (1).  Motion was made by Kazim to approve the Consent Calendar 
with the removal of (1).  Motion seconded by Crawford and carried unanimously.  Kazim 
commented on the April Resident Council Minutes regarding statements from a resident sharing 

Page 3 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
1



DRAFT  

 

2 
 

staffing concerns.  Kazim stated that even though he recognizes the staffing concerns that have 
been brought to the board by staff and that the board continues to make efforts to increase 
staffing, he felt it was extremely inappropriate for staff to be making comments on staffing 
concerns to the residents.  Kazim further stated the Pavilions job is to take care of the residents 
and not to discuss their staffing issues to them.  Crawford stated that it is also unacceptable 
behavior for a staff member to be rude and dismissive towards a resident which was noted by a 
resident in the April Resident Council Minutes. 
 
Items Removed From Consent Calendar – Crawford requested to remove (1) Draft Minutes of 
the 4/18/24 Board Meeting due to Crawford not being in attendance in that meeting and needing 
a separate approval.  Motion was made by Marois to approve the Minutes of the 4/18/24 Board 
Meeting. Motion seconded by Kazim.  Crawford abstained.  Motion carried.  
 
Chairman Report – Marois shared information on House Bill 5725 that if approved, it would 
amend the Open Meetings Act to allow remote attendance during board meetings and would 
allow participation for a board member to vote remotely if there is a quorum of the board on site. 
 
Service Excellence Awards – Marois reviewed April Service Excellence Awards. 
  
Foundation Board Update – Marois shared she attended the Foundation’s May 1st Board 
meeting and gave an overview of the Foundation.  
 
Golf Outing Update – Bodalski reviewed the results of the 1st annual Golf outing and shared 
were able to surpass the goal of $8,000 to $10,000 with a profit of $10,666.52  
 
Chief Executive Officer Report – Bodalski reviewed the monthly report for April and 
highlighted on census, financial trends, quality measures, staffing, monthly Quality 
Assurance/Performance Improvement (QAPI) meetings and irregular payments.  
 
Financial Report – Bodalski presented the financial operations and social accountability reports 
for April 2024 and answered board member’s questions. Kazim requested to add six month 
trends for Patient Per Day (PPD) to Bodalski’s dashboard.  Discussed.  Kazim shared he was 
unaware of a bond payment for Hawthorn and would like to revisit the discussion and plan on 
what will be spent on the Cottages all while paying for a bond payment.  Bodalski shared the 
need for a Request for Proposal (RFP) to develop a scope of work for the Cottages and plans to 
request the Foundation to eventually fund the study. Motion made by Crawford to accept the 
financial operations report as presented, seconded by Kazim and carried unanimously. 
 
Budget Amendment – Bodalski shared the budget amendment for informational purposes and 
will bring back a final amendment for approval in June or July.  No motion needed. 
 
Grand Traverse Pavilions Announcements  

(1) Next Board Meeting June 27, 2024  
 
Break 10:39-10:41 
 
Second Public Comment – none 
 
Segal in 10:41 
Andrews out 10:44 
 

Page 4 of 47



DRAFT  

 

3 
 

Motion was made by Kazim seconded by Marois to go into Closed Session at 10:44 am for the 
purpose of Closed session pursuant to section 8(e) of the Open Meetings Act, to consult with 
our attorney regarding trial or settlement strategy in connection with pending litigation, DHHS 
and the Grand Traverse Pavilions Foundation Board v PACE North. 
 
Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes 
 
Motion was made by Kazim to come out of Closed Session at 11:41 am, seconded by Crawford.  
Motion carried. 
 
Roll Call - Marois – yes, Kazim – yes, Crawford – yes 

 
Meeting adjourned at 11:41 am 
 
Signatures:  
 
 
 

Mary Marois – Chair 
Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
Date:                                   Approved 
                                   Corrected and Approved 
 

Page 5 of 47



PAVILIONS RESIDENT COUNCIL MEETING  
May 16, 2024 

 
The May 2024 meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Resident Council was called to 
order at 11:00 am in the Multi-Purpose Room by Hanna Wooters  
 
All residents were welcomed. 
The residents waived their right to a closed meeting. 
 
Members Present: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
 
Birch Pavilion: 6 residents attended.  
 
Cherry Pavilion: 3 residents attended. 
 
Dogwood Pavilion: 8 residents attended. 
  
 
Staff members were introduced: 
Hanna Wooters, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Samantha Mahon, CTRS, Life Enrichment 
Emily Tyrell LLBSW, Cherry Pavilion Social Work 
Emily Cotterman, Dogwood Pavilion Social Work 
Darrin Eggleston - Forefront Dining Services 
Lisa Telling, Dietary Administrative Assistant – Forefront Dining Services 
Tim Coggins, Environmental Services Director  
Cati Kujawaski, Environmental Services Manager 
 
 
Old Business: 
There was not any old business from the previous meeting that needed to be brought 
up for discussion or to follow up on. 
 

New Business: 
Hanna made the following announcements:  
-Residents were reminded of changes of life enrichment department with Kari Belanger 
and Linda Burton retiring.   
 
 
Outings for June 2024: 

Tuesday, June 4th – Butterfly House 

Board bus at 10:00am, return pick up to come home at 12:30pm  

Thursday, June 14th – Moomer’s Icecream  

Page 6 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
2



 Board bus at 2:30 pm, return pick up to come home at 4:00 pm 

Tuesday, June 18th – Walmart Shopping 

 Board bus at 10:00 am, return pick up to come home at 11:30 am 

 

Special Events for June 2024: 
Monthly Book Mobile- Beginning Thursday, May 23rd continuing every 3rd Thursday of 

the month. 

Concerts on the Lawn begin Thursday June 20th at 7:00 pm.  

Additional music:  

June 3rd- Billy McAllister Music 

June 12th- Chromatics Band 

June 21st- Tally and Bob Music 

Thursday June 20th – Resident Council Meeting at 11:00 am 

 

Resident Group Interview Questions: 
Samantha and Hanna discussed with the attending residents that are 12 resident rights 
that are reviewed during the group interview with the State Surveyors during our annual 
survey, and today we will be reviewing Rights. 
 
Rights:  

• How do you, or your representative, find out about your rights – such as voting, 
making an advance directive, getting what you need? 

- Residents responded by asking a social worker or checking community boards in 
each pavilion hall.  

 
 

• Are you, or your representative, invited to care conference meetings? 
- All residents present said yes.   

 
 

• Do you know that you can see a copy of the facility’s latest survey inspection results? 
Where is that report kept here? 

- All residents present said yes. Copies are located by the elevator and front desk.  
 
 

• Do you know how to contact the Ombudsman? 
- All residents present said yes, located on the community board.   

 

Page 7 of 47



 
 
 

• Do you know you, or your representative, can look at your medical record? 
- All residents present said yes.  

 
 

• Have any of you asked to see your record? What was the facility’s response? Did they 
talk to you about it? 

- All residents present reported never asking for a record in the past but are aware 
it’s available.  

 
 

• Tell me about the mail delivery here. Is mail delivery prompt and does it arrive 
unopened? 

- All residents present said yes.  
 
 

1.  Discussion regarding food temperature and receiving HS snacks. 
 

One resident suggested having fruit with Jello as an additional dessert option. 
Another resident reported they would enjoy ribs with more meat. Darren responded 
that he would report feedback to GM.  
 
One resident reported that they enjoy the spaghetti but would prefer less turkey.   
 
No concerns noted.  
 
Next food talk meeting scheduled for June 19th at 2:00pm.  
 

 

2.  Discussion regarding the cleanliness of the facility and laundry being returned 
promptly. 
A few different residents had comments on this topic. Residents reported that 
maintenance has been responding to concerns in a timely manner. Two residents 
reported issues with bedroom window shades. One resident reported difficulty with light 
cord and another discussed the water temperature in sink. One resident reported 
missing a blanket. Tim is following up on these concerns.  
 
 
3.  Discussion regarding room temperature. 
The floor was opened for residents to make comments, suggestions, concerns, and or 
ask questions:  

- All residents present have no concerns at this time.  
 

Page 8 of 47



4.  Discussion regarding call lights being answered in a timely manner. 
 
All residents reported satisfaction with the promptness of answering call lights.  
 

5.  Discussion regarding receiving showers as needed/as requested. 
              
No concerns or comments noted.  
 

6. Discussion regarding the nighttime noise level on your Pavilion. 
 
All residents reported the nighttime noise level being good.  
 
 

The floor was opened for additional comments: 
 
One resident requested maintenance to check the uneven sidewalks outside Birch and 
Aspen pavilion.  

 
 

 
The next Pavilions Resident Council meeting will be held on Thursday June 20th at 
11:00am in the Multi-Purpose Room. Hanna asked for a volunteer to read over and sign 
the May 2024 minutes, and X said that she would do this. The Pavilions Resident 
Council Meeting was adjourned at 12:00pm.  
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
_______________________  
Hanna Wooters, CTRS     
Recreational Therapist              
 
 
_______________________ 
Cherry, Resident 

 
 

Page 9 of 47



Elm Resident Council Minutes 
Meeting Held- May 23rd 2023 

 
The March meeting of the Grand Traverse Pavilions Elm Resident Council was called to order at 
10:30am in the Elm Common Area. 
 
Members Present were: Residents are marked “X” throughout the minutes. 
10 Residents attended.  
 
 
Staff Present: 
Susan Eldred, Recreation Therapist 
Emily Tyrrell, Social Worker 
Naomi Rode, Assistant Director of Nursing 
 
 
Old Business:  
None 
 
New Business: 
 
Asked the residents if they were being offered a snack before bed.  
X stated yes, she was offered snacks. X stated, “once in awhile.” X said yes, she was being offered 
snacks. X stated no she was not offered snacks. A reminder was given to staff to offer snacks.  
 
Asked the residents if they were getting help with showers.  
X stated, “once in awhile.” X stated, “Mines in the morning.” X stated, “yes put it on and take a 
shower.” 
 
Asked the residents if they need help do the staff help them.  
X stated, “when I need one, they are right there.” X stated that she “gets help when need it.” 
 
Asked the residents if the rooms were getting cleaned.  
X, X and X all stated “yeah.” 
 
Asked the residents how the food tastes.  
X and X stated that the food is “pretty good.” X stated that “today the breakfast was wonderful.” 
 
 
Asked the residents if they have enough to do. 
X stated, “I do.” X stated, “yes I think so.” X stated, “quite a few things to do.” X stated, “oh yeah if 
they take advantage of.”  
 
Questions, Suggestions, Concerns and Comments: 
The floor was open for questions, suggestions, concerns and comments.  
X stated, “if breakfast is supposed to be at a certain time than it should be there at that time.” Dining 
services were contacted about the issue. X also stated that “clean floors after last meals, shouldn’t 
be walking on wet floors.” Environmental Services was contacted about the issue.  

Page 10 of 47



 
Suggestions for upcoming activities: 
X suggested making Chili. 
X suggested to have lunch outside 
 
Outings 
Butterly House June 4th 
Walmart June 18th 
Elm Ice cream outing June 25th 
 
 
Meeting was closed at 10:51am 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
 
Susan Eldred, CTRS   Emily Tyrrell, LBSW                   Naomi Rode, BSN, RN  
 

Page 11 of 47



CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 
 

Many changes have taken place at the Grand Traverse Pavilions this past year.    The addition of 
Haider Kazim and Carol Crawford to the board offers renewed stability and opportunities for the 
Pavilions to have skilled decision makers as we progress forward.   
 
This combined with the addition of Gerard Bodalski as our Administrator/CEO sets us on a 
trajectory for success.    Along with Mr. Bodalski’s arrival, there have been significant changes in 
top level leadership positions within the organization.  In many ways, you might say that we are 
going through a cultural revolution.   Changes are occurring very quickly as we seek to maintain 
our long standing reputation as a quality skilled Medical Care Facility, serving both long and 
short term residents. 
 
We cannot underestimate the value of staff as we go through a series of transitions.  Staff are 
our greatest asset, without them, we would not exist as a MCF.  We know that it has been 
stressful to see change happen so quickly and expectations increasing as we grow our census.  
We appreciate the sacrifices that all staff are making.  No one appreciates your hard work more 
than the residents and the families who entrust their loved ones to you.  I have heard countless 
stories from friends and people in the community about the superior care they received while 
at the Pavilions.  And I see your smiles and hear your loving words when I see you interacting 
with residents and it warms my heart.    
 
We will grow our census, we will be hiring more staff, we will meet the need of the residents of 
this community for long and short term skilled nursing care.  Board, staff, community….we will 
walk together on this journey to provide quality services.  I want to thank staff for all you do 
everyday to make life better for others.   People ask me, what do people who work at the 
Pavilions do?  My answer to them is:  THEY ENHANCE LIVES.   
 
Mary Marois 

Page 12 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
3



GRAND TRAVERSE PAVILIONS 

Service Excellence Award Program 

May 2024 

  

Date: 05/6/2024 
Employee: Katy Leach 

Awarded for: 
Just wanted to say thank you for repotting all our lovely plants. They love you for that 
and so do I. 

Position: Environmental Services Administrative Assistant  

Nominated by: Jeanie Hickman 

 
 
 

 

Date: 05/06/2024 
Employee: Buckley Johnson 

Awarded for: 
A Cherry resident wanted to recognize Buckley for fixing her TV. The resident stated 
that Buckley was very kind, professional and deserves an award. 

Position: Maintenance Technician  

Nominated by: Chrissy Wagatha 

 
 
 
 

Date: 05/13/2024 
Employee: Gretchen Limbocker 

Awarded for: 
Thank you, Gretchen, for helping clean up this morning after we made our yogurt 
parfaits. You were so accommodating and helpful. We appreciate you. 

Position: Housekeeper 

Nominated by: HR Team 

 
 
 
 

Date: 05/13/2024 
Employee: Emily Tyrell 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for always being there to help me out when I am in a pinch! I don't know what 
I would do without you :) 

Position:  Social Worker 

Nominated by: Sarah Pleva 

 
 
 
 

Date: 05/20/2024 
Employee: Matthew Arnold 

Awarded for: 
Matthew handled a challenging schedule situation this week with flexibility and 
professionalism. Thank you, Matthew. 

Position:  Physical Therapy Assistant  

Nominated by: Chris Hinze 

 
 
 

Page 13 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
4



 

 
 

 
 

Date: 05/20/2024 
Employee: Craig Shantz 

Awarded for: 
Thank You for your help when I was behind and for everything you do for these 
residents. You always make sure things are under control, everything and everyone is 
taken care of. THANK YOU. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Marina Vorobyov 

Date: 05/28/2024 
Employee: Valerie Marinello 

Awarded for: 
Thank you for assisting a resident up from bed that was not on your assignment and 
supporting a new CNA and setting a good example. thanks for working so hard. 

Position:  CNA 

Nominated by: Julie Alber  

Page 14 of 47



Charles L.
Traverse City, MI

“I chose the Wellness Center upon
recommendation from my personal

physician. I’ve had PT in the past but I
didn’t realize what a difference aqua
therapy would make. My therapist,

Matthew, understands my needs and
capabilities. We have progressed to the

point where the pain has decreased
and my mobility has increased. The

entire staff has been supportive. I am
very pleased with my progress and I

will continue to use the tools and
knowledge I’ve learned to continue my

rehabilitation.”

The Grand Traverse Pavilions Wellness Center
Outpatient Therapy - (231) 932-3172Page 15 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
5



 
 

TO:  Grand Traverse County Department of Health and Human Services Board 
 
FROM: Gerard Bodalski, CEO/Administrator       
       
RE:  May CEO/Administrator Report 
 
Census (Average Daily Census) 
 June MTD May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

Medical Care 
Facility (MCF) 

167 168 162 163 157 150 144 

Cottages 56 54 54 54 52 54 52 

 
MCF May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

Admissions 68 68 65 61 61 49 

Discharges 61 66 65 52 51 53 

MMC Referrals 166 183 180 204 220 186 

MMC Denied 37 35 27 39 40 45 

Transfers to LTC 2 3 3 1 7 4 

 
Cottages May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

Admissions 2 3 3 1 3 2 

Respite 6 3 7 3 3 2 

Discharges  2 2 1 4 2 2 

 
Finance 

 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

Combined Net Income $178,240 $66,406 $9,663 $(192,201) $(157,224) $(101,326) 

MCF   
Net Income 

$140,058 $102,075 $51,320 $(119,231) $(100,310) $(25,542) 

Cottage  
Net Income 

$38,182 $(35,669) $(41,657) $(72,970) $(56,914) $(75,784) 

Cash Balance $2,971,674 $2,970,769 **$2,737,615 $4,167,696  *$4,429,453 $(5,580,084) 

A/R Days Sales 
Outstanding 

55 48 57 56 56 54 

* Received IRS COVID Relief payment of $6,970,430 and MDHHS Medicaid Cost Settlement for year 2021-2022 of $3,763,658.  
**Third payroll of $700,000 and AR increase of $579,000. 

  

MCF Operating Expenses PPD History   

 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Actual PPD 

$463.24 $458.21 $463.13 $493.44 $486.38 $503.26 

MCF Operating Expenses 
Budgeted PPD 

$452.94 $456.71 $452.94 $460.75 $453.59 $477.21 

Variance 
(unfavorable)/favorable 

$(10.29)  $(1.50)  $(10.19)  $(32.69)  $(32.79)  $(26.05)  

 
           

Page 16 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
6



2 
 

Facility Reported Incidents 
 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

Medical Care Facility 2 1 1 2 8 6 

 
Wellness Center 

Numbers of Patients seen: May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

Medicare A 38 34 31 24 28 22 

Medicare Advantage Skilled 43 40 41 42 35 39 

Private Insurance: Inpatient 3 5 5 4 5 2 

Private Pay: Inpatient 0 1 0 0 1 1 

Auto: Inpatient 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Med A/Rehab Inpatient 
Totals 

85 81 78 71 70 65 

       

Medicaid 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Medicare B: Inpatient 38 38 24 17 31 37 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Inpatient 

13 14 16 9 12 9 

Med B Inpatient Totals 52 52 40 31 43 46 

       

Medicare B: Outpatient 22 23 14 14 19 26 

Medicare B Advantage: 
Outpatient 

46 47 33 36 36 33 

Private Insurance: 
Outpatient 

21 20 17 16 13 15 

Work Compensation: 
Outpatient 

1 1 1 1 0 0 

Private Pay: Outpatient 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Auto: Outpatient 0 0 2 2 2 2 

Outpatient Totals 90 91 69 69 70 76 

       

Numbers of Wellness 
Center Visits: 

      

Aquatic inpatients therapy 
visits 

35 17 27 13 14 8 

Aquatic aftercare visits per 
month 

344 303 289 310 343 324 

Aquatic outpatient PT visits 170 195 117 139 144 100 

Aquatic group class 
participants 

74 66 69 78 80 324 

Land therapy visits (PT, OT, 
SLP) 

262 179 169 183 198 213 

Total Outpatient therapy 
visit 

432 395 302 359 368 313 

       

Outpatient aquatic therapy 
revenue 

49,719.42 51,850.07 39,056.20 45,407.73 38,632.28 19,681.08 

Aftercare monthly revenue 3,400 3,030 2,890 3,100 3,430 3,240 

Aquatic group class 
revenue 

1,480 1,320 1,380 1,560 1,600 1,560 

Total Wellness center 
revenue 

54,639.42 56,820.07 43,326.20 50,067.73 43,662.28 24,481.08 

 
Staffing 

 May-24 Apr-24 Mar-24 Feb-24 Jan-24 Dec-23 

Hires 2 8 17 15 10 9 

Resignations  6 3 6 4 2 2 

Referrals 8 3 4 9 11 2 

Total # Employees 303 324 322 316 303 292 

Page 17 of 47



3 
 

June MDT # employees 315 
Talent Sourcing and Recruiting is underway for the following open positions: 4 Afternoon CNAs, 2 UWs, 2 MN 
Rehab RN/LPNs, 1 LMSW, 1 LLBSW, 1 PRN Admin Asst, 2 Custodians, 1 Environmental Services Director,  

 
CEO/Administrator’s Verbal Updates 
 

• Request for Proposal (RFP) 

• Concerts on the Lawn Update 

• CNA Celebration 

• Clinical Initiatives 
 
Environmental Services 
On May 1, Katy Leach, Environmental Services Administrative Assistant, calculated the maintenance 
hours that were being spent on bus runs to supplement our regular transport drivers.  The total hours 
between January 1 and April 30 were 122 hours.  This averages 6.4 hours per week that 
maintenance spends transporting residents. 
 
On May 10, Coggins communicated with Elizabeth Payne, Director of Nursing, regarding the resident 
scales, as it was reported that there were some inconsistent weights across all units.  Currently the 
scales are calibrated monthly.  Coggins and Payne discussed calibrating the scales more often.  
Payne will follow up. 
 
On May 12, Munson Medical Center completed the cleaning of the parking structure, and our 
maintenance team repainted the stripes in our parking area. 
 
On May 14, Coggins received a new pump for the fountain in the front circle.  The maintenance team 
wired and plumbed the pump, and Coggins and Cati Jasso, Environmental Services Manager, 
programmed the pump.  The fountain is now functional for residents and family members to enjoy. 
 
On May 19, Destiny Gothard, Maintenance Tech, repainted the crosswalk from the parking structure 
to the receiving lot.  While this is a crosswalk, and cars are required to stop for pedestrians, there had 
been some close calls with cars nearly hitting pedestrians.  The newly painted crosswalk has 
eliminated this issue. 
 
On May 20, Coggins discovered that the outdoor walk-in freezer was not holding temperature.  The 
condenser coils were cleaned, and the freezer started to cool down.  We created a new work order 
that will generate monthly to clean the condenser coils to prevent this issue in the future. 
 
On May 23, our maintenance team started the repair of the circle drive exit and a couple of sections 
of sidewalk that were in rough shape.  The areas were barricaded off for ten days to allow the 
concrete to cure properly before driving on it. 
 
On May 31, Coggins and Jasso met with a representative of Northern Lightning Wash, a local 
company that washes vehicles on site.  They gave a demo on our small bus and quoted a bi-weekly 
quote to wash our company vehicles for $150.  This includes the two buses, Promaster van, Chevy 
Impala, and Ford F-250 plow truck.  This will prolong the life of the vehicles and improve our image in 
the community. 
 
Activities 
Recreational Therapists in the life enrichment department completed video chats throughout the 
month for 7 residents over FaceTime or Google Duo. 

Page 18 of 47



4 
 

 
Activities, Special Events and Outings that occurred in May included small group activities such as 
Bird Care; Card Games & Word Games (Roll a Topic, Categories, Jeopardy, Card group and trivia); 
and Creative Kitchen group baking items for mocktail hour such as cheese cake, cookies and protein 
balls. Residents engage in arts and crafts making Kentucky Derby Hats and adult mandala coloring. 
In addition to helping fold the weekly Pavilions Post, residents assisted with garden care, planting 
flowers and vegetables in the courtyard raised beds. Residents participated in morning 
stretch/exercise groups using balloon balls and seated exercises. Sing-alongs took place throughout 
the building for morning and afternoon activity in hallways and common areas. Large group activities 
that were held included: Drum Circles, Bingo, Bingo Store, Bowling, Let’s Talk Food Meeting, 
Popcorn Fridays & Movies and Tuesday Mocktails. Large events that took place during May included 
a Mother’s Day social including families, a professional photographer, snacks and Mother’s Day gifts. 
A Memorial Day game and social event was held as well as Skilled Nursing Care Week involving 
residents in the theme “Radiant Memories” including 70’s Karaoke, Sock Hops and Milkshakes, DIY 
1920’s headpieces and a disco party exercise. The music group Kalamazoo College Singers 
performed for residents as well. Livestreaming of church services from Central United Methodist 
Church, Gaither’s Gospel and St. Francis of Assisi were showing in the Multi-Purpose Room, along 
with Catholic Mass with Father Joe once this month, and Rosary & Holy Communion weekly. Outings 
that residents signed up for were lunch at Cracker Barrel and fishing at the Discovery Pier. Two 
socials are held at the Rehab Pavilion each week, with snacks provided by Forefront Dining Services. 
Elm residents have participated in various sensory group activities including-sensory cart, painting, 
crafts, hand lotion massages and aroma bracelet making. They participate in small group morning 
exercise including afternoon strolls. Cognitive groups include trivia, categories, book club, National 
Geographic Exploration and game group. Residents participated in socials and creative kitchen. 
Residents engage in weekly intergenerational visits from the children of the Pavilions day care center 
and various sing a long activities as well as weekly movie and popcorn activity.  
 
On May 16th the Pavilions Resident Council meeting for residents was held for all pavilions to come 
together to meet. Elm Resident Council was held separately on May 23rd.  
 

 

 

Page 19 of 47



Grand Traverse Five Star Quality Measures Update 1 of  4

CMS ID
Last 30-day Update 

May 2024

S038.02

Short-Stay
3-Star

0/11 Triggered

Percentage: 0%

Running 12-Month

percentage: 3.1%

Currently trending:

3-Star 

60/100 Points

N011.03

Short-Stay
3-Star

0/32 Triggered

Percentage: 0%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: .88%

Currently trending:

4-Star 

80/100 Points

N/A

RETIRED

N/A

Moving to new measure:

Discharge Function Score

S042.01

Short-Stay
(Star rating cut point not yet 

released by CMS)

7/11 Triggered

Percentage: 64%

Running 12-Month

percentage: 67.7%

National Avg: 55.23%

Short-Stay

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Short-Stay (Five Star) Quality Measures

Discharge Function Score

QRP QM

***HIGHER SCORES ARE BETTER***

Five-Star (beginning October 2024)

Collection period:

12 months

Medicare A Patients only.

N/A

Public reporting to start:

 October 2024

N/A

Public reporting to start:

 October 2024

(Star rating cut point not yet released 

by CMS)

0/9 Triggered

Percentage: 0%

Running 12-Month

percentage: 63.21%

National Avg: 50.73%

Reviewing all planned D/C's prior to D/C section GG coding.

Auditing all non-triggering Type 1 PPS stay D/C for accuracy.

JMD had call with MDS and nursing staff reviewing this measures.  

Did see good improvement.  Captured 7/11 at 64%.  Average up to 

67.7%, 12% above the national average.

Note: This measure Will be replaced with the SNF QRP Discharge Function Score measure in Five-Star with the October 2024 refresh

Changes in Skin Integrity Post-Acute Care:

Pressure Ulcers/Injury (QRP)

Five Star

Collection period: 12 Months

2-Star

Percentage: 6%

40/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 4%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

7/22 to 6/23

3-Star

Percentage: 3.8%

60/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 2.2%

80/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

3-Star

1/9 Triggered

Percentage: 11%

Running 12-Month

percentage: 3.4%

60/100 Points

Nursing staff reviewing and reassessing every pressure area.

MDS to ensure all exclusions are begin captured.

Nursing to follow-up with any upstaged pressure areas since this will 

trigger.

Looks good, no additional triggers.

Percent of Short-Stay Residents Who Were Re-

Hospitalized after a

Nursing Home Admission

Five-Star

Inpatient Medicare Claims MDS

2-Star

Percentage: 22.22%

90/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 21.15% 

105/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

This measures is claims based 

and data is not available via the 

iQIES system.

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Working with MD's to try and prevent new re-admissions to the 

hospital.

Also ideas from new DON on how to handle /  treat situation in the SNF 

to prevent hospital readmissions.

Percent of Residents Who Made Improvements in 

Function (retired 10/01/23)

***HIGHER SCORES ARE BETTER***

Five-Star (frozen April 2024)

Collection period:

12-months Averaged Quarterly

4-Star

Percentage: 75.97%

120/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 83% 

150/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

4-Star

Percentage: 75.97%

120/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 83% 

150/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

Moving to new measure:

Discharge Function Score

Measure, Program, and 

Data Source:

Currently Publicly Reported 

Released:

 April 2024

Next Projected 

Public Report: 

July 2024

Last 60-day Update 

April 2024
Action Plan

Percent of Residents Who Newly Received an 

Antipsychotic Medication

Five-Star

Collection period:

12-months Averaged Quarterly

2-Star

Percentage: 1.97%

40/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 1.68%

40/100 Points

Review Period: 

1/23 to 12/23

3-Star

Percentage: 1.39%

60/100 Points

Next Cut Point: .96%

80/100 Points

Review Period: 

4/23 to 3/31

3-Star

0/30 Triggered

Percentage: 0%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: .88%

80/100 Points

Working with MD on appropriate follow-up with Gradual Drug 

Reduction protocol.

Exploring other pharmaceutical and non-pharmaceutical alternatives.

Looks good, no additional triggers.

N/A

Page 20 of 47



Grand Traverse Five Star Quality Measures Update 2 of  4

CMS ID
Last 30-day Update 

May 2024

Short-Stay (Five Star) Quality Measures

Changes in Skin Integrity Post-Acute Care:

Pressure Ulcers/Injury (QRP)

Five Star

Collection period: 12 Months

2-Star

Percentage: 6%

40/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 4%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

7/22 to 6/23

3-Star

Percentage: 3.8%

60/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 2.2%

80/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

3-Star

1/9 Triggered

Percentage: 11%

Running 12-Month

percentage: 3.4%

60/100 Points

Nursing staff reviewing and reassessing every pressure area.

MDS to ensure all exclusions are begin captured.

Nursing to follow-up with any upstaged pressure areas since this will 

trigger.

Looks good, no additional triggers.

Measure, Program, and 

Data Source:

Currently Publicly Reported 

Released:

 April 2024

Next Projected 

Public Report: 

July 2024

Last 60-day Update 

April 2024
Action Plan

Short-Stay

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Short-Stay

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

N013.02

Long-Stay

2-Star

7/123 Triggered

Percentage: 5.7%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 4.58%

Currently trending:

2-Star 

40/100 Points

N024.02

Long-Stay

4-Star

1/122 Triggered

Percentage: 0.8%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 1.02%

Currently trending:

4-Star 

80/100 Points

N026.03

Long-Stay

5-Star

0/112 Triggered

Percentage: 0%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 0.3%

Currently trending:

5-Star 

100/100 Points

Discharge to Community— PAC SNF QRP

Measure SNF QRP

Inpatient Medicare Claims MDS

***HIGHER SCORES ARE BETTER***

Five-Star

3-Star

Percentage: 52.82%

90/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 57% 

105/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

This measures is claims based 

and data is not available via the 

iQIES system.

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Being sure rehab to very clear on the skilled needed for patients to 

return home or other community living.

Patient must living in the community after D/C without an unplanned 

readmission to the hospital or nursing home. 

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Working with MD's to try and prevent new re-admissions to the 

hospital.

Also ideas from new DON on how to handle /  treat situation in the SNF 

to prevent hospital readmissions.

Percent of Residents with a Urinary Tract Infection

MDS 3.0 QM

Five-Star

Reported in iQEIS

4-Star

Percentage: 1.26%

80/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 0.7%

100/100 Points

Review Period: 

1/23 to 12/23

4-Star

Percentage: 1.05%

80/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 0.7%

100/100 Points

Review Period: 

4/23 to 3/24

4-Star

1/119 Triggered

Percentage: 0.8%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 1.04%

Currently trending:

4-Star 

80/100 Points

Nursing

Look good.  Not seeing any additional trigger.  Only 1/122 last 

month.

Percent of Residents Who Have or Had a Catheter 

Inserted and Left in Their Bladder

MDS 3.0 QM

Five-Star

Publicly Reported  in iQIES Data Source: MDS

3-Star

Percentage: 1.39%

60/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 1.26%

80/100 Points

Review Period: 

1/23 to 12/23

5-Star

Percentage: 0.31%

100/100 Points

Next Cut Point: - 0.5%

100/100 Points

Review Period: 

4/23 to 3/24

4-Star

1/112 Triggered

Percentage: 0.9%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 0.4%

Currently trending:

5-Star 

100/100 Points

Nursing to monitor and continue to follow any residents with a catheter 

and determine necessity.

Look good.  Not seeing any additional triggers.

Nursing

This measure is a serious concern and does not seem to be 

moving in the right direction. 

Suggest fall prevention training and Rehab to be more involved in 

screening follow-up on all falls.

Percent of Residents Experiencing One or More 

Falls With Major Injury

MDS 3.0 QM

Five-Star

Reported in iQEIS

2-Star

Percentage: 4.23%

40/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 3.56%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

1/23 to 12/23

2-Star

5/120 Triggered

Percentage: 4.2%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 4.48%

Currently trending:

2-Star 

40/100 Points

2-Star

Percentage: 4.25%

40/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 3.56%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

4/23 to 3/24

Long-Stay (Five Star) Quality Measures

Percent of Short-Stay Residents Who Have Had an 

Outpatient Emergency Department Visit

Five-Star

Inpatient Medicare Claims

1-Star

Percentage: 17.58%

30/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 14.65% 

45/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

This measures is claims based 

and data is not available via the 

iQIES system.

Page 21 of 47



Grand Traverse Five Star Quality Measures Update 3 of  4

CMS ID
Last 30-day Update 

May 2024

Short-Stay (Five Star) Quality Measures

Changes in Skin Integrity Post-Acute Care:

Pressure Ulcers/Injury (QRP)

Five Star

Collection period: 12 Months

2-Star

Percentage: 6%

40/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 4%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

7/22 to 6/23

3-Star

Percentage: 3.8%

60/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 2.2%

80/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

3-Star

1/9 Triggered

Percentage: 11%

Running 12-Month

percentage: 3.4%

60/100 Points

Nursing staff reviewing and reassessing every pressure area.

MDS to ensure all exclusions are begin captured.

Nursing to follow-up with any upstaged pressure areas since this will 

trigger.

Looks good, no additional triggers.

Measure, Program, and 

Data Source:

Currently Publicly Reported 

Released:

 April 2024

Next Projected 

Public Report: 

July 2024

Last 60-day Update 

April 2024
Action Plan

RETIRED

Long-Stay
N/A

Moving to new measure: Percent 

of Residents Whose Need for Help 

with Activities of Daily Living Has 

Increased.

N028.03

Long-Stay (Star rating cut point not yet 

released by CMS)

12/92 Triggered

Percentage: 13%

Running 12-Month

Percentage: 14.55%

National Avg: 19.3%

N031.04

Long-Stay

2-Star

24/118 Triggered

Percentage: 20.3%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 22.5%

Currently trending:

1-Star 

30/150 Points

N/A

RETIRED

N/A

Moving to new measure:

Percent of Residents Whose 

Ability to Walk Independently 

Worsened

N035.04

Long-Stay
(Star rating cut point not yet 

released by CMS)

9/51 Triggered

Percentage: 17.60%

Running 12-Month

Percentage: 20.5%

National Avg: 30.4%

Percent of Residents Whose Ability to Move 

Independently Worsened (retired 10/01/23)

Five-Star (Frozen April 2024)

Collection period:

12-months Averaged Quarterly

1-Star

Percentage: 29.14%

15/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 27.47%

30/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

1-Star

Percentage: 29.14%

15/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 27.47%

30/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

Moving to new measure:

Percent of Residents Whose 

Ability to Walk Independently 

Worsened

N/A

Percent of Residents Whose Need for Help with 

Activities of Daily Living Has Increased

Five-Star (Frozen April 2024)

Note: This measure uses section G data prior to 

10/01/23.

2-Star

Percentage: 18%

45/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 17.6%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

2-Star

Percentage: 18%

45/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 17.6%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

Moving to new measure: Percent of 

Residents Whose Need for Help with 

Activities of Daily Living Has 

Increased.

N/A

Percent of Residents Who Received an 

Antipsychotic Medication

MDS 3.0 QM

Five-Star

Publicly Reported  in iQIES Data-Source: MDS

1-Star

Percentage: 24.84%

30/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 20.39%

45/100 Points

Review Period: 

1/23 to 12/23

1-Star

Percentage: 23.52%

30/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 20.39%

45/150 Points

Review Period: 

4/23 to 3/24

2-Star

22/115 Triggered

Percentage: 19.1%

Running: 4 quarters

percentage: 21.8%

Currently trending:

1-Star 

30/150 Points

Working with MD's on appropriate follow-up with Gradual Drug 

Reduction protocol.

Exploring Other pharmaceutical and non-pharmaceutical alternatives.

Still not seeing improvements here.  Need to re-address with MD's 

and look for more alternatives.  This measure will prevent overall 

long-stay measures going over a 4-Star.

Percent of Residents Whose Ability to Walk 

Independently Worsened (new 10/01/23)

Five-Star (starting January 2025)

Data Source: MDS

iQIES reporting expected July 2024

N/A

Public reporting to start:

January 2025

N/A

Public reporting to start:

January 2025

(Star rating cut point not yet 

released by CMS)

13/51 Triggered

Percentage: 25.5%

Running 12-Month

Percentage: 25.5%

National Avg: 30.4%

All walking patients are being reviewed by DONs and screened by 

therapy when appropriate.

JMD healthcare to continue to tack these patients.

Seeing good improvement here.  Now 10% under the national 

average.  Predict being around a 4-Star if the national average 

does not change.

Note: This measure Will be replaced with the SNF QRP Discharge Function Score measure in Five-Star with the October 2024 refresh

Note: This measure Will be replaced with the SNF QRP Discharge Function Score measure in Five-Star with the October 2024 refresh

Percent of Residents Whose Need for Help with 

Activities of Daily Living Has Increased

Five-Star (Unfrozen January 2025)

Note: This measure uses Section GG data after 

10/01/23.

N/A

Public reporting to start:

January 2025

N/A

Public reporting to start:

January 2025

(Star rating cut point not yet released 

by CMS)

15/93 Triggered

Percentage: 16.1%

Running 12-Month

Percentage: 16.1%

National Avg: 17.5%

JMD Healthcare and therapy department to screen patients coming up 

for quarterly and annual assessments.

Seeing some improvement and now 5% lower that national 

average.  Still waiting for CMS to release cut-points. 

Predict current percentage at a 3-Star for this measure.

Page 22 of 47



Grand Traverse Five Star Quality Measures Update 4 of  4

CMS ID
Last 30-day Update 

May 2024

Short-Stay (Five Star) Quality Measures

Changes in Skin Integrity Post-Acute Care:

Pressure Ulcers/Injury (QRP)

Five Star

Collection period: 12 Months

2-Star

Percentage: 6%

40/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 4%

60/100 Points

Review Period: 

7/22 to 6/23

3-Star

Percentage: 3.8%

60/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 2.2%

80/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

3-Star

1/9 Triggered

Percentage: 11%

Running 12-Month

percentage: 3.4%

60/100 Points

Nursing staff reviewing and reassessing every pressure area.

MDS to ensure all exclusions are begin captured.

Nursing to follow-up with any upstaged pressure areas since this will 

trigger.

Looks good, no additional triggers.

Measure, Program, and 

Data Source:

Currently Publicly Reported 

Released:

 April 2024

Next Projected 

Public Report: 

July 2024

Last 60-day Update 

April 2024
Action Plan

N/A

RETIRED

N/A

Moving to new measure:

Percent of Residents with Pressure 

Ulcers

N045.01

Long-Stay
(Star rating cut point not yet 

released by CMS)

8/119 Triggered

Percentage: 6.7%

Adjusted %: 0.5%

Running 12-Month

Percentage: 3.7%

National Avg: --

551

Long-Stay

Moving to new measure:

552

Long-Stay

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Number of Outpatient Emergency Department 

Visits per 1,000 Long- Stay Resident Days

Five-Star

Inpatient Medicare Claims MDS

4-Star

Percentage: 0.59%

90/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 0.49%

105/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

This measures is claims based 

and data is not available via the 

iQIES system.

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Working with MD's to try and prevent new re-admissions to the 

hospital.

Also ideas from new DON on how to handle /  treat situation in the SNF 

to prevent hospital readmissions.

Number of Hospitalizations per 1,000 Long-Stay 

Resident Days

Five-Star

Inpatient Medicare Claims MDS

3-Star

Percentage: 1.53%

90/150 Points

Next Cut Point: 1.49%

105/150 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

This measures is claims based 

and data is not available via the 

iQIES system.

N/A

This measures is claims based and 

data is not available via the iQIES 

system.

Working with MD's to try and prevent new re-admissions to the 

hospital.

Also ideas from new DON on how to handle /  treat situation in the SNF 

to prevent hospital readmissions.

JMD to implement INTERACT Program in approximately 30 days 

to assist in decreasing both ER visits and re-admissions.

N/A

Public reporting to start:

January 2025

N/A

Public reporting to start:

January 2025

(Star rating cut point not yet released 

by CMS)

8/119 Triggered

Percentage: 6.7%

Running 12-Month

Percentage: 6.7%

National Avg: --

Note: This measure Will be replaced with the Percent of Residents with Pressure Ulcers measure in Five-Star with the January 2025 refresh.

Percent of Residents with Pressure Ulcers (new 

10/01/23)

Five-Star

 

Publicly Reported (starting January 2025)

Percent of High-Risk Residents with Pressure 

Ulcers (retired 10/01/23)

Five-Star (frozen April 2024)

5-Star

Percentage: 10.85%

20/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 10.57%

20/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

5-Star

Percentage: 10.85%

20/100 Points

Next Cut Point: 10.57%

20/100 Points

Review Period: 

10/22 to 9/23

N/A

Moving to new measure:

Percent of Residents with 

Pressure Ulcers

Nursing staff reviewing and reassessing every pressure area.

MDS to ensure all exclusions are begin captured.

Nursing to follow-up with any upstaged pressure areas since this will 

trigger.

This measure look good.  Although was at  6.7% off triggers, the 

adjusted rate dropped to 0.5% since we did find Med Dx that "risk 

adjusted" the final score.  

This is very positive but at 3.7% will likely still be a only a 2-3 Star.  

Threshold for ulcers are very low in SNF's.  I would expect you 

will need to be under 1% to hit the 5-Star. 

Page 23 of 47



 

2024 CNA AWARDS 
Best Team Player 

Levi Harner- Dogwood 
 

Best Problem Solver 
Beth Riffle- Cherry 

 

Most Positive Attitude 
Deb Paulus- Birch 

 

With so many nominations, it’s clear we have a spectacular 
team at GT Pavilions!   

To all the CNAs- Thank you for all you do! 

Happy CNA Week Page 24 of 47



Page 25 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
7



Page 26 of 47



Page 27 of 47



Page 28 of 47



Page 29 of 47



Grand Traverse Pavilions

Irregular payments

2024

Vendor Description Month Amount Notes Other

Grand Traverse County union pension bond principal January 215,000.00         Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually inc.

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest January 96,806.25           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Payroll Retention pay January 214,192.15         Non-recurring payment Expensed in 2023; Paid in 2024

State of Michigan Provider Taxes January 229,867.05         Deferred billing of 4th Qtr 2023 provider taxes Amount varies annually; offset by the deferral of the 4th quarter of 2024 provider taxes until January 2025

Forefront Every 4 years, leap year payment February 14,000.00           Extra cost for extra day of service Required under the contract

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest payment February 54,940.00           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly, Paid twice each year

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance February 67,277.75           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Payroll Perfect Attendance February 3,740.18             Quarterly with an annual bonus for those with perfect attendance

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Supplement Reconciliation February 253,637.05         Annual reconciliation-pmt 1 of 2 Next year proj at $510,000 refund

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance March 62,272.41           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) March 700,000.00         

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract March 18,537.00           1/2 Paid back to GTP by Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/2

State of Michigan Quality Assurance Supplement Reconciliation March 99,322.65           Annual reconciliation-pmt 2 of 2 Next year proj at $510,000 refund

Alliance for Senior Housing Rental Commissions April 4,283.00             Cottage lease commission

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond principal payment April 230,000.00         Level principle payments Pmts done in 2031-level principle pmts

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment April 24,437.50           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond interest April 43,496.25           Interest decreases each year Paid by Pace to GTP

Payroll Perfect Attendance April 5,051.25             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Windemuller Electric Transformer replacement April 133,980.00         One time capital expenditure

Backflow Man Backflow valve testing/repairs May 1,650.00             Required annual testing

Floor Covering Brokers Kitchen tile regrout May 14,973.36           One time capital expenditure

MCMCFC Annual Dues May 12,100.00           This is the 2024-25 amount

Plante Moran Cost Report Preparation June 11,000.00           Medicare & Medicaid Cost Reports-annual Benchmarking survey and MA rate projec.

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance June 62,272.41           Installment payment Calendar year policy

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract June 37,076.00           1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/3

Nationwide Insurance lawsuit retention (deductible) July 25,000.00           Notice of intent to sue rec 4/26/24

State of Michigan 2019 Audit payment--after Circuit Court decision July 334,731.63         Dif between audited cost and allowed costs for claims between 10/1/20 and 9/30/21

Total Fire Protection Fire Sprinkler Head Replacements July 31,622.74           One time capital expenditure

Grand Traverse County union pension bond interest payment July 93,581.25           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Leading Age Annual Dues July 28,780.14           This is the 2023-24 amount

MERS Supplemental Pension Payment July 30,707.08           Amount varies annually

Payroll Perfect Attendance July 5,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Gerard Bodalski Moving Expense Reimbursement August 8,000.00             Per employment agreement

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond principal August 275,000.00         Amortization changes each year Pmts done in 2039, prin. Gradually inc.

Grand Traverse County non-union pension bond interest August 54,940.00           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Otis Elevator Elevator contracts August 20,000.00           Annual expense for elevator maintenance

Payroll 3 payrolls in the month (26 per year) August 700,000.00         

Nationwide Insurance Liability and property insurance September 62,272.41           Installment payment Calendar year policy

Grand Traverse County Hawthorn cottage bond interest payment October 21,907.50           Amortization changes each year Expensed monthly

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Bond principal paid to County October 155,000.00         Pmts done in 2037, prin inc by $5k most years To be paid by Pace to GTP

Grand Traverse County Rent-- Pace Bond interest paid to County October 43,496.25           Interest decreases each year To be paid by Pace to GTP

Payroll Perfect Attendance October 5,000.00             Quarterly payment-$100 grossed up for FICA for those with perfect attendance

Relias elearning program October 38,146.09           Annual expense

Grand Traverse County Rent--Pace Facility November 31,250.00           Level lease payment To be paid by Pace to GTP

Longevity Pay Annual pay based on seniority and hours November 82,000.00           Annual payment; expensed monthly Per union agreement and handbook

NetSmart Technologies Annual Pmt for legacy healthcare record access November 24,000.00           Annual payment umS hmsn with annual pmt for legacy healthcare record access

State of Michigan Outstation worker payments per contract December 18,537.00           1/2 due to be paid back to GTP from Pace Contract renews 10/1--want decision by 6/1

Law Firm Union Contracts December 20,000.00           3 year contract expires 12/31/2024

Forefront Child care, vending and allowance overages Every 5,000.00             Varies based on usage

4,723,884.35     

Page 30 of 47



Page 31 of 47



Page 32 of 47



Page 33 of 47



Page 34 of 47



Page 35 of 47



Page 36 of 47



Page 37 of 47



Page 38 of 47



Page 39 of 47



Page 40 of 47



Page 41 of 47



Page 42 of 47



Page 43 of 47



Page 44 of 47



Grand Traverse Pavilions  
Resident Care Policies and Facility Assessment 

 
Resident Care Policies 
Grand Traverse Pavilions have standard Resident Care Policies that cover topics 
ranging from the admission criteria, Resident Rights, discharge planning to quality of 
life. These policies are in addition to the interdisciplinary core department policies within 
Grand Traverse Pavilions. These Resident Care Policies were fully reviewed by the 
governing board on March 31, 2023. There have been no changes to date. These 
policies are available upon request. 
 
Facility Assessment 
The facility assessment required by CMS to determine what resources are necessary to 
care for the residents.  This involves a review of the services and care that are offered 
by the facility, staffing needs and the resources required for daily care. This assessment 
is updated yearly to reflect our population and their needs. This assessment is reviewed 
yearly during our annual survey, with other accreditation bodies periodically and was 
endorsed by the governing board in 2023. The facility assessment was reviewed by 
Mary Marois, Board Chair on Tuesday, June 18, 2024.  Annual updates from 2023 to 
2024 were addressed. This assessment is available to the governing board as 
requested.  
 

 

Page 45 of 47

dgratton
Text Box
8



Page 46 of 47



Page 47 of 47

dgratton
Text Box

dgratton
Text Box
2024


